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)
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5601 General Washington Drive )
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Alexandria, VA 22312 )
)
RESPONDENT. )
) Proceeding Under Section 16(a) of the
) Toxic Substances Control Act, 15 U.S.C.
) Section 2615(a)
)
CONSENT AGREEMENT

This Consent Agreement is entered into by the Director for the Land and Chemicals
Division, U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, Region Il (“Complainant”) and GBC Kitchen
& Bath, LLC. (or “Respondent”) pursuant to Sections 16(a) and 409 of the Toxic Substances
Control Act (“TSCA”), 15 U.S.C. §§ 2615(a) and 2689, and the Consolidated Rules of Practice
Governing the Administrative Assessment of Civil Penalties and the Revocation, Termination or
Suspension of Permits (“Consolidated Rules of Practice™), 40 C.F.R. Part 22 (with specific
reference to 40 C.F.R. §§ 22.13(b) and 22.18(b)(2) and (3)).

[. PRELIMINARY STATEMENT AND STIPULATIONS

1. The violations cited herein pertain to the Respondent’s alleged failure, during the
performance of a renovation for compensation on certain pre-1978 housing, to comply
with the Lead Renovation, Repair, and Painting Program (commonly known as the “RRP
Rule™), set forth at 40 C.F.R. Part 745, Subpart E.

2. In accordance with 40 C.F.R. § 22.13(b) and .18(b)(2) and (3) of the Consolidated Rules
of Practice, Complainant hereby simultaneously commences and resolves, as part of the
settlement set forth herein, EPA’s civil claims alleged in Sections IV and V of this
Consent Agreement.
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II. JURISDICTION

The U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (“EPA™) has jurisdiction over the above-
captioned matter pursuant to Sections 16(a) and 409 of TSCA, 15 U.S.C. §§ 2615(a) and
2689, and 40 C.F.R. §§ 22.1(a)(5) and 22.4 of the Consolidated Rules of Practice.

1. GENERAL PROVISIONS

For purposes of this proceeding, Respondent admits the jurisdictional allegations set forth
in this Consent Agreement and the attached Final Order, hereinafter collectively referred
to as the “CAFO.”

Except as provided in Paragraph 4, above, the Respondent neither admits nor denies the
specific factual allegations and legal conclusions set forth in this Consent Agreement.

Respondent agrees not to contest the jurisdiction of EPA with respect to the execution of

this Consent Agreement, the issuance of the attached Final Order, or the enforcement of
this CAFO.

For purposes of this proceeding only, Respondent hereby expressly waives any right to
contest any issue of law or fact set forth in this Consent Agreement and any right to

appeal the accompanying Final Order.

Respondent consents to the issuance of this CAFO and agrees to comply with its terms
and conditions.

Each party to this Consent Agreement shall bear its own costs and attorney’s fees.

[V. FINDINGS OF FACT AND CONCLUSIONS OF LAW

In accordance with 40 C.F.R. § 22.13(b) and .18(b)(2) and (3) of the Consolidated Rules
of Practice, Complainant alleges and adopts the Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law
set forth immediately below.

Pursuant to 40 C.F.R. § 745.83, the term “firm” means “a company, partnership,
corporation, sole proprietorship or individual doing business, association or other
business entity; a Federal, State, Tribal or local government agency; or a nonprofit
organization.”

Pursuant to 40 C.F.R. § 745.83, the term “renovation” means “the modification of any
existing structure, or portion thereof that results in the disturbance of painted surfaces,
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unless that activity is performed as part of an abatement as defined by 40 C.F.R.
§ 745.223.”

Pursuant to Section 401(17) of TSCA, 15 U.S.C. § 2681(17), and 40 C.F.R. § 745.103,
the term “target housing” means “any housing constructed prior to 1978, except housing
for the elderly or persons with disabilities (unless any child who is less than 6 years of
age resides or is expected to reside in such housing) or any 0-bedroom dwelling.”

Respondent, at all times relevant to the violations alleged in this Consent Agreement, was
a “person” and a “firm,” who performed a “renovation,” as those terms are defined at 40
C.F.R. § 745.83 at the following properties: 1) 1336 Jefferson St., NW, Washington,
D.C. (1336 Jefferson St.”) ; 2) 300 Adams Avenue, Alexandria, VA (“300 Adams
Ave.”); and 3) 16808 George Washington Drive, Rockville, MD (“16808 George
Washington Drive”).

1336 Jefferson St., 300 Adams Avenue, and 16808 George Washington Drive, referred to
in Paragraph 14, above, were constructed prior to 1978 and are “target housing” as that
term is defined at 40 C.F.R. § 745.103.

Respondent entered into a contract on or around March 29, 2014, November 11, 2014,
and September 13, 2014 with the owners of 1336 Jefferson St., 300 Adams Avenue, and
16808 George Washington Drive, respectively, for the purpose of performing a
“renovation for compensation” pursuant to 40 C.F.R. § 745.82(a) at 1336 Jefferson St.,
300 Adams Avenue, and 16808 George Washington Drive.

The “renovation performed for compensation™ at 1336 Jefferson St., 300 Adams Avenue,
and 16808 George Washington Drive did not involve a renovation in target housing or a
child-occupied facility in which:

(1) “a written determination ha[d] been made by an inspector or risk assessor ... that
the components affected by the renovation are free of paint or other surface
coatings that contain lead equal to or in excess of 1.0 milligrams/per square
centimeter . . .,” as provided at 40 C.F.R. § 745.82(a)(1);

(2) “a certified renovator, using an EPA recognized test kit . . ., has tested each
component affected by the renovation and determined that the components are
free of paint or other surface coatings that contain lead equal to or in excess of 1.0
milligrams/per square centimeter . . .,” as provided at 40 C.F.R. § 745.82(a)(2); or

(3) “a certified renovator has collected a paint chip sample from each painted
component affected by the renovation and a laboratory recognized by EPA . . .
has determined that the samples are free of paint or other surface coatings that
contain lead equal to or in excess of 1.0 milligrams/per square centimeter . . .,” as
provided at 40 C.F.R. § 745.82(a)(3).
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On May 14, 2015, Complainant conducted an inspection of Respondent’s business
records, to further determine Respondent’s level of compliance with the RRP rule in
regards to certain renovation activities performed by Respondent at 1336 Jefferson St.,
300 Adams Avenue, and 16808 George Washington Drive.

V. VIOLATIONS ALLEGED

Count 1

The allegations contained in Paragraphs 1 through 18 of this Consent Agreement are
incorporated by reference herein as though fully set forth at length.

Pursuant to 40 C.F.R. § 745.81(a)(2)(ii), firms are required to obtain initial certification
from EPA under § 745.89 prior to performing renovations at target housing.

On or about March 29, 2014, November 11, 2014, and September 13, 2014, Respondent
performed a renovation at 1336 Jefterson St., 300 Adams Avenue, and 16808 George
Washington Drive, respectively.

Respondent failed to obtain initial lead-safe firm certification from EPA prior to
performing the renovations on or about March 29, 2014, November 11, 2014, and
September 13, 2014, at 1336 Jefterson St., 300 Adams Avenue, and 16808 George
Washington Drive, respectively.

Count 1: Under 40 C.F.R. § 745.81(a)(2)(i1), failure to obtain initial firm certification
from EPA prior to performing the renovations at 1336 Jefferson St., 300 Adams Avenue,
and 16808 George Washington Drive, referred to in Paragraph 22, above, constitutes a
violation of 40 C.F.R. §745.87(a) and Section 409 of TSCA, 15 U.S.C. § 2689.

Count 2

The allegations contained in Paragraphs 1 through 23 of this Consent Agreement are
incorporated by reference herein as though fully set forth at length.

Pursuant to 40 C.F.R. § 745.84(a)(1), a firm performing a renovation must provide the
owner of the unit with the Renovate Right pamphlet, and either obtain the owner’s
written acknowledgement that the owner received the pamphlet, or obtain a certificate of
mailing at least 7 days prior to the renovation.
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At the time of the May 14, 2015 inspection, Respondent had not provided the owner of
1336 Jefferson St. the Renovate Right Pamphlet for the renovation performed on or about
March 29, 2014, at 1336 Jefferson St.

Count 2: Under 40 C.F.R. § 745.84(a)(1), failure to provide the owner with the pamphlet
during the renovation at 1336 Jefterson St., referred to in Paragraph 26, above,
constitutes a violation of 40 C.F.R. § 745.87(a) and Section 409 of TSCA, 15 U.S.C. §
2689.

Count 3-4

The allegations contained in Paragraphs 1 through 27 of this Consent Agreement are
incorporated by reference herein as though fully set forth at length.

Pursuant to 40 C.F.R. § 745.84(a)(1)(i), a firm performing a renovation must provide the
owner of the unit with the Renovate Right pamphlet, and either obtain the owner’s
written acknowledgement that the owner received the pamphlet, or obtain a certificate of
mailing at least 7 days prior to the renovation.

At the time of the May 14, 2015 inspection, Respondent did not have the owner’s
acknowledgment of receipt of the pamphlet or a certificate of mailing sent at least 7 days
before the renovations performed on or about November 11, 2014, and September 13,
2014, at 300 Adams Ave. and 16808 George Washington Dr., respectively.

Count 3-4: Under 40 C.F.R. § 745.84(a)(1)(1), failure to either obtain the owner’s written
acknowledgement that the owner received the pamphlet, or obtain a certificate of mailing
at least 7 days prior to the renovation, during the renovations at 300 Adams Ave. and
16808 George Washington Dr., referred to in Paragraph 30, above, constitutes two
violations of 40 C.F.R. § 745.87(b) and Sections 15 and 409 of TSCA, 15 U.S.C. §§ 2614
and 2689.

Count 5-7

The allegations contained in Paragraphs 1 through 31 of this Consent Agreement are
incorporated by reference herein as though fully set forth at length.

Pursuant to 40 C.F.R. § 745.86(a), firms performing renovations must retain and, if
requested, make available to EPA all records necessary to demonstrate compliance with
this subpart, 40 C.F.R. § 745, Subpart E, for a period of 3 years following completion of
the renovation.









Docket No.: TSCA-03-2016-0172

Under this proposed repayment schedule, the Respondent will pay the civil penalty of
$36,862.00 plus interest of $113.60 as further outlined in the chart below:

Payment Principal Interest Payment Amount Due
1 $ 3,072 $22.72 $ 3,094.72
2 $3,072 $20.20 $3092.20
3 $3,072 $17.67 $ 3,089.67
4 $3,072 $15.15 $3,087.15
5 $3,072 $12.62 $ 3,084.62
6 $3,072 $10.10 $ 3,082.10
7 $3,072 $7.57 $3,079.57
8 $3,072 $5.05 $3,077.05
9 $3,072 $2.52 $3,704.52
Total $36,862.00 $113.60 $36,975.60
40. Payment of the civil penalty amount shall be made by either cashier's check, certified

check or electronic wire transfer, in the following manner:

a.

All payments by Respondent shall reference Respondent’ s name and address, and the
Docket Number of this action, i.e., TSCA-03-2016-0172;

All checks shall be made payable to “United States Treasury”;

All payments made by check and sent by regular mail shall be addressed and mailed

to:

U.S. Environmental Protection Agency

Cincinnati Finance Center
P.O. Box 979077
St. Louis, MO 63197-9000
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environment. In addition, this settlement is subject to all limitations on the scope of
resolution and to the reservation of rights set forth in Section 22.18(c) of the
Consolidated Rules of Practice, 40 C.F.R. § 22.18(c). Further, EPA reserves any rights
and remedies available to it under TSCA and any other federal laws or regulations for
which EPA has jurisdiction, to enforce the provisions of this CAFO following its filing
with the EPA Regional Hearing Clerk.

XI. PARTIES BOUND

This Consent Agreement and the accompanying Final Order shall apply to and be binding
upon the EPA, the Respondent and the Respondent’s successors, agents and assigns.

XII. EFFECTIVE DATE

The effective date of this Consent Agreement and the accompanying Final Order (which
is signed by the Regional Administrator of EPA Region III, or his designee, the Regional
Judicial Officer), shall be the date the CAFO is filed with the EPA Regional Hearing
Clerk pursuant to the Consolidated Rules of Practice.

XIII. ENTIRE AGREEMENT

This Consent Agreement and the accompanying Final Order constitute the entire
agreement and understanding of the parties regarding settlement of all claims pertaining
to the specific violations alleged herein and there are no representations, warranties,
covenants, terms, or conditions agreed upon between the parties other than those
expressed in this CAFO.
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